
 
 

 

DINAS A SIR ABERTAWE 

 
HYSBYSIAD O GYFARFOD 
 
Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod  
 

PWYLLGOR SAFONAU 
 
Lleoliad: 
 

Ystafell Bwyllgor 3, Canolfan Ddinesig, Abertawe 
 

Dyddiad: 
 

Dydd Gwener, 13 Chwefror 2015 

Amser: 
 

9.30 am 

 
AGENDA 

Rhif y Dudalen 
. 

 
1 Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
 
2 Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol. 1 - 2 
 
3 Cofnodion. 3 - 5 

 Cymeradwyo, fel cofnod cywir, gofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 9 
Ionawr 2015. 

 

 
4 Trafodaeth am y cyfarfod â'r Cynghorau Cymuned.  
 
5 Uno is-bwyllgorau Safonau Cynghorau Cymuned/Tref â'r Pwyllgor 

Safonau. 
6 - 9 

 
6 Datrys anghydfodau lleol gan Gynghorwyr 10 - 22 
 
7 Trin pobl â pharch 23 - 24 
 

 
 
Patrick Arran 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Democrataidd a Chaffael 
6 Chwefror 2015 
Cyswllt:Jane Tinker ( 01792) 636820  
 
 
 
 



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\2\AI00011272\$pi3ypa1e.doc 

Disclosures of Interest 

 
To receive Disclosures of Interest from Councillors and Officers 

 

Councillors 

 
Councillors Interests are made in accordance with the provisions of the 
Code of Conduct adopted by the City and County of Swansea.  You must 
disclose orally to the meeting the existence and nature of that interest. 
 
NOTE: You are requested to identify the Agenda Item / Minute No. / Planning 
Application No. and Subject Matter to which that interest relates and to enter 
all declared interests on the sheet provided for that purpose at the meeting. 
 
1. If you have a Personal Interest as set out in Paragraph 10 of the 

Code, you MAY STAY, SPEAK AND VOTE unless it is also a 
Prejudicial Interest.  

 
2. If you have a Personal Interest which is also a Prejudicial Interest as 

set out in Paragraph 12 of the Code, then subject to point 3 below, you 
MUST WITHDRAW from the meeting (unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Standards Committee) 

 
3. Where you have a Prejudicial Interest you may attend the meeting but 

only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or 
giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are 
also allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether 
under a statutory right or otherwise.  In such a case, you must 
withdraw from the meeting immediately after the period for 
making representations, answering questions, or giving evidence 
relating to the business has ended, and in any event before further 
consideration of the business begins, whether or not the public are 
allowed to remain in attendance for such consideration (Paragraph 14 
of the Code). 

 
4. Where you have agreement from the Monitoring Officer that the 

information relating to your Personal Interest is sensitive information, 
as set out in Paragraph 16 of the Code of Conduct, your obligation to 
disclose such information is replaced with an obligation to disclose the 
existence of a personal interest and to confirm that the Monitoring 
Officer has agreed that the nature of such personal interest is sensitive 
information. 

 
5. If you are relying on a grant of a dispensation by the Standards 

Committee, you must, before the matter is under consideration: 
 

i) Disclose orally both the interest concerned and the existence of 
the dispensation; and 

ii) Before or immediately after the close of the meeting give written 
notification to the Authority containing: 

 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\2\AI00011272\$pi3ypa1e.doc 

a) Details of the prejudicial interest; 
b) Details of the business to which the prejudicial interest 

relates; 
c) Details of, and the date on which, the dispensation was 

granted; and  
d) Your signature 

 

Officers 

 
Financial Interests 
 
1. If an Officer has a financial interest in any matter which arises for 

decision at any meeting to which the Officer is reporting or at which the 
Officer is in attendance involving any member of the Council and /or 
any third party the Officer shall declare an interest in that matter and 
take no part in the consideration or determination of the matter and 
shall withdraw from the meeting while that matter is considered.  Any 
such declaration made in a meeting of a constitutional body shall be 
recorded in the minutes of that meeting.  No Officer shall make a report 
to a meeting for a decision to be made on any matter in which s/he has 
a financial interest. 

 
2. A “financial interest” is defined as any interest affecting the financial 

position of the Officer, either to his/her benefit or to his/her detriment.  It 
also includes an interest on the same basis for any member of the 
Officers family or a close friend and any company firm or business from 
which an Officer or a member of his/her family receives any 
remuneration.  There is no financial interest for an Officer where a 
decision on a report affects all of the Officers of the Council or all of the 
officers in a Department or Service. 

 

Page 2



 
 

 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA 

 
MINUTES OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM 3, CIVIC CENTRE, SWANSEA ON 

FRIDAY, 9 JANUARY 2015 AT 9.30 AM 

 

 
PRESENT: A Novis (Chair) Presided 

 
  
 
 
Councillor(s) 
 
J C Bayliss 
C E Lloyd 
L G Thomas 
 
Independent Members:- 
 
J Burgess 
J Gomes 
M Howells 
C Walton 
 
Officers:- 
 
T Meredith      -    Deputy Head of Legal, Democratic Services and Procurement 
H Evans          -    Head of Democratic Services 
J Tinker           -    Democratic Services Coordinator 

 

 
 

  

 
37 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor P Downing. 
 

38 DISCLOSURES OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Code of Conduct adopted by the City and 
County of Swansea, no interests were declared. 
 

39 MINUTES. 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Standards Committee held on 21 November 
2014 be accepted as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Standards Committee (09.01.2015) 
Cont’d 

 

 

40 STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORKPLAN 2015 - 2016. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services submitted a report regarding formulating a 
workplan for the Standards Committee for 2014 – 2016 based on feedback 
discussions held. The recurring themes and key issues raised at these discussions 
were summarised in the report.  
  
The merger of the Standards Committee and the Community/Town Councils 
Standards Sub Committee was discussed and the Committee were in support of a 
merger. However, as it was anticipated that this would take some time it was 
considered beneficial that in the meantime a meeting take place with representatives 
of all the Community Councils to discuss the Councillor Local Dispute Resolution, 
Treating People with Respect, the Merger and training. It was considered that the 
work plan should be timetabled in the following order:- 
  

•       Treating People with respect 

•       Local Dispute Resolutions 

•       Declarations of Interest 

•       Inconsistency in Ombudsman Decisions 

•       Councillor Training 

•       Standards Committee attend Committees 

•       Annual link with Scrutiny 

•       Good governance and best practice 

•       Merger of the Standards Committee and the Community/ Town Councils 
Standards Sub Committee 

  
  
It was also suggested that the Annual meetings with Group Leaders and Chairs also 
be built into this work plan.  
  
RESOLVED that 
  
(1)      The merger of the Standards Committee and the Community/ Town          
 Councils Standards Sub Committee be supported in principle and be referred 
 to Council for approval. 
  
(2)      A meeting be arranged with representatives of the Community Councils and 
 that attendance be restricted to 3 from each (i.e. Chair, Clerk and one other) 
 to discuss the various matters indicated above. 
  
 (3)     The work plan be timetabled as indicated above and that the Annual          
 meeting with Group Leaders, etc be built into this. 
  
  
 

41 SWANSEA COUNCILLOR PLEDGE ON STANDARDS. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services presented a report on a review of the sign up to 
the Swansea Councillor Pledge on Standards following comments made by Political 

Page 4



Minutes of the Standards Committee (09.01.2015) 
Cont’d 

 

 

Group Leaders and Chairs of Committee to the Standards Committee. The pledge 
was attached as Appendix A to the report. It was stated that Opposition Councillors 
had prepared their own version of the pledge which was attached as Appendix B. 
The Committee discussed the pledge and the recommendation that this be 
compulsory. 
 
It was indicated that the Welsh Government recognised a pledge as best practice 
and had included this in their model Constitution. 
  
RESOLVED that the recommendation made by the Standards Committee to Council 
that it be compulsory that Councillors sign the “ Swansea Councillor Charter and 
Councillor Pledge on Standards” remain.  
 

42 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
The Committee were informed that the next meeting of the Standards Committee 
was 13 February 2014. However, a request had been received that the subsequent 
meeting scheduled for 27 March 2015 be rearranged. 
  
RESOLVED that the meeting on 27 March 2015 be rearranged to 17 April 2015. 
  
  
The meeting ended at 10.25 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 

Page 5



Joint Report of the Head of Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer 
 

Standards Committee – 13 February 2015 
 

COMMUNITY / TOWN COUNCILS STANDARDS SUB COMMITTEE 
MERGER WITH STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 

Purpose: 
 

To recommend to Council that the Community / 
Town Councils Standards Sub Committee be 
abolished and its work to be carried out by the 
Standards Committee. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

To outline the procedure for merging the 
Community / Town Council Standards Sub 
Committee into the Standards Committee and to 
recommend this action to Council. 
 

Consultation: 
 

Finance, Legal. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 

  

1) The Standards Committee recommend to Council that the Community / 
Town Councils Standards Sub Committee be merged with the Standards 
Committee. 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith 

Access to Services Officer: Euros Owen 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Standards Committee at its meeting on 15 November 2013 resolved 

to instruct the Head of Democratic Services to prepare a report detailing 
the issues relating to merging the Standards Committee with the 
Community / Town Council Sub Committee (Sub Committee), the 
process that must be followed together with the situation with regard to 
Standards Committees throughout Wales. 

 
1.2 This led to a report being presented to the Standards Committee on 17 

January 2014.  This report noted the fact that 20 of Wales’ 22 Local 
Authorities had already merged these bodies.  It was agreed at that 
meeting to raise the principal of a merger with the Political Group 
Leaders which were scheduled throughout 2014. 

 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



1.3 It was generally accepted by the Political Group Leaders that they would 
be supportive of such a merger as they agreed that it would ensure 
consistency of decisions and also that the Community / Town Council 
representative would have regular dealings on Standards issues. 

 
2. Legislation Relating to the Standards Committee 
 
2.1 Section 54(1) of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the Act”) originally 

established the requirement for each Authority to have a Standards 
Committee. 

 
2.2 Section 56(4) of the Act gives the Authority  the responsibility for deciding 

whether conduct issues in Community Councils should be handled by the 
Standards Committee or by a separate Standards Sub Committee, after 
consulting the Community Councils in their areas. 

 
2.3 If a Standards Committee do not have a Standards Sub Committee to 

deal with Community / Town Council conduct matters, then Regulation 
10(1) of the Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 2001 as 
amended (“the Regulations”) requires that the membership of the 
Standards Committee must include at least one Community / Town 
Council member. 

 
2.4 Regulation 10(3) of the Regulations requires that before the Authority 

makes an appointment of a Community / Town Committee Member, the 
Authority shall consult with: 

 
a) Community / Town Councils which are situated in its area; and 
b) Community / Town Council associations established for and 

operating within that area (if any). 
 
2.5 The Regulations are silent on how an Authority should proceed if there 

are more applications than the number of vacancies.  However, the 
shortlisting could be done by the Monitoring Officer, a Committee 
established for that purpose, or by the Appointments Committee or 
Standards Committee to shortlist and to make a recommendation(s) to 
Council.  It would be reasonable to ensure that the process is outlined to 
all prior to nominations being sought. 

 
2.6 It is Council that makes the actual appointment. 
 
3. Issues Relating to Merging Standards Committee with the Community 

/ Town Council Sub Committee 
 
3.1 Number and Make Up of People on the Standards Committee 
 
3.1.1 The Regulations state that “a Standards Committee shall consist of not 

less than 5 nor more than 9 members”. 
 

Page 7



3.1.2 The Standards Committee is currently made up of 9 members (5 
Independent Persons and 4 Councillors (3 Labour and 1 Liberal 
Democrat). 

 
3.1.3 As stated, if a Standards Committee deals with Community / Town 

Council issues then legally, at least one Community / Town Councillor 
must be a member of it. 

 
3.1.4 In order to facilitate this additional person, one of the Councillors would 

have to be removed (The current figures would mean that one of the 
Labour Councillors would have to stand down).  The remaining 3 
Councillors would be nominated in line with Committee Proportionality. 

 
3.2 Current Community / Town Council Sub Committee Members 
 
3.2.1 The Community / Town Councils Standards Sub Committee consists of 4 

Independent Persons and 3 Community / Town Councillors.  However, 
there is a current vacancy meaning that only 2 of the Community / Town 
Councillors have been appointed.  Both current members would need to 
apply if interested. 

 
3.2.2 If merger is being considered, then it would be reasonable to consult with 

Community / Town Councils on the proposal.  There is no statutory 
requirement to do this, but it was a requirement to consult with them 
when the Standards Sub Committee was established. 

 
3.2.3 If the merger went ahead, then it would be a statutory requirement to 

consult with the Community / Town Councils and any Community / Town 
Council associations before making an appointment. 

 
3.2.4 There is no requirement to advertise the vacancy in the national press. 
 
4. The Process of Merging 
 
4.1 Standards Committee to recommend to Council that the merger should 

occur.  Council would then consider this.  Assuming that Council agree, 
then, consultation will commence with the Community / Town Councils.  
The outcome of this consultation is not binding however it should be duly 
considered. 

 
4.2 Once, the consultation ends, Council should consider the information and 

make a decision as to whether to merge or not.  If Council decides to 
continue with the merger, Community / Town Councils will be given the 
opportunity to put forward their nominations . I would suggest that the 
Standards Committee should be the vehicle to shortlist and interview.  
Council will then make the appointment based on the recommendation of 
the interviewing body. 

 
 
 

Page 8



5. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place prior 

to the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low priority 
and a full report was not required. 

 
6. Financial Implications 
 
6.1 This will be met from within existing budget. 
 
7. Legal Implications 
 
7.1 These are set out in the Report. 
 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Appendices: None. 

Page 9



Joint Report of the Head of Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer 
 

Standards Committee – 13 February 2015 
 

COUNCILLORS LOCAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

Purpose: 
 

To consider how to raise the profile of the 
Councillors Local Dispute Resolution mechanism 
and whether it could be used for Community / 
Town Councils. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

To consider what work needs to be carried out 
with regard to the purpose outlined above. 

Consultation: 
 

Finance, Legal. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 

  

1) The views of the Committee are sought. 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith 

Access to Services Officer: Euros Owen 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Council at its meeting on 9 June 2011 agreed an innovative process of 

dealing with Councillor Complaints about other Councillors.  This process is 
generally referred to as the Councillors Local Dispute Resolution mechanism.  
The report and procedure are appended as Appendix A. 

 
1.2 During the period 18 March and 10 October 2014, the Standards Committee 

held individual discussions with the Chief Executive, Political Group Leaders, 
Chairs of Regulatory Committees and the Chair of the Scrutiny Programme 
Committee. 

 
1.3 At the Standards Committee on 9 January 2015, a workplan for 2015-2016 

was created and prioritised.  Work relating to the Councillors Local Dispute 
Resolution mechanism topped the list. 

 
2. Councillors Local Dispute Resolution 
 
2.1 Whilst this is recognised as an excellent and innovative system; it is 

interesting that to date it has never been used.  It is generally believed that 
this is mainly due to the fact that a large number of regular complaints ceased 
when it was introduced and periods after Local Government Elections appear 
more stable. 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



2.2 Despite this, the Standards Committee are keen to raise its profile and 
encourage its use.  It was also suggested that the local dispute resolution be 
adopted by Community / Town Councils and that Standards Committee may 
wish to investigate how the various Community / Town Councils operate and if 
correct procedures are adhered to. 

 
2.3 Standards Committee are asked to consider the report appended as Appendix 

A and to consider what actions they wish to take to promote the mechanism. 
 
3. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
3.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place prior to 

the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low priority and a 
full report was not required. 

 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 This will be met from within existing budget. 
 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1 These are set out in the Report. 
 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Appendices: 
 

Appendix A “Dealing with Complaints by one Councillor against another” - 
Council – 9 June 2011 

 

Page 11



Appendix A 
 

Item No. 10 (2) 
 

Report of the Acting Monitoring Officer 
 

Council – 9th June 2011 
 

DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS BY ONE COUNCILLOR AGAINST ANOTHER 
 

Summary 
Purpose: 
 

To seek Council’s approval to a process of 
dealing with Councillor complaints about other 
Councillors 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None 
 

Reason for Decision:  
 

To agree a new process 
 

Consultation: 
 

Chief Executive, Group Leaders, Finance, 
Chairman of Standards Committee 
 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Over the last two years the Standards Committee in Swansea has given 

detailed consideration to its role in improving Standards in the Council.  As 
part of that consideration each political Group Leader, the Presiding Officer 
(for the relevant period), the Chief Executive and the Public Services 
Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) attended at meetings of the Standards 
Committee in order to discuss their views on the current and future role of the 
Committee.  The views expressed were recorded and set out in a matrix to 
show common themes and the differences of view which arose. 

 
1.2 The Standards Committee also received a report from the Welsh Audit Office 

(the WAO) (dated July 2010), which included recommendation “P4”, which 
read as follows:- 

 
“Explore ways of strengthening accountability for member behaviour and 
reducing the role of referral to the Ombudsman.  This might include 
consideration of a more active role for the Standards Committee and/or 
developing internal mechanisms for resolving complaints”. 

 
1.3  The Standards Committee agreed that a meeting should be convened, to 

involve the political Group Leaders, the Chairman of Standards Committee, 
the Chief Executive and the Acting Monitoring Officer, to discuss the views set 
out in the matrix mentioned in paragraph 1.1 above and the recommendation 
from the WAO. 

 
 

Page 12



2.0  Progress of the Group 
 
2.1 The group mentioned in paragraph 1.3 above has met twice. 
 
2.2 The most recent meeting of the group took place on March 8th 2011.  At that 

meeting the group agreed that the Council should be asked to adopt an 
informal system of dealing with complaints by members against other 
members.  The process involved with this method is set out as Appendix 1 to 
this report, as a flow chart.  The main features for members to note with 
regard to the proposed process are as follows:- 

 
2.2.1 The process is aimed at resolving matters informally, so in the first instance a 

member who has a complaint should approach the Group Leader of the 
member who the complaint is about. 

 
2.2.2 If the approach outlined in paragraph 2.2.1 is not effective the complaint is 

forwarded to the Monitoring Officer/Democratic Services Manager.  A meeting 
of the Councillor Mediation Panel (CMP) will be arranged.  This group will 
consist of the Group Leaders. 

 
2.2.3 If the complaint relates to a failure to declare an interest, the CMP process will 

not be available. 
 
2.2.4 The CMP will aim to reach an agreed way forward to resolve the complaint.  

Decisions of the CMP must be unanimous. 
 
2.3 The group at its meeting on 8th March asked the Acting Monitoring Officer to 

contact the PSOW on various points relating to the suggested process.  
Attached at Appendix 2 are a letter to the PSOW dated 12th April 2011, a 
response from the PSOW dated 21st April 2011 and a further letter to the 
PSOW dated 4th May 2011.  Members will note the positive response from the 
PSOW in his letter dated 21st April to the suggested process. 

 
2.4  For the process to work it is important that all the members agree to use the 

process before they consider making a complaint to the PSOW. 
 
2.5 Council will note that in his letter dated 21st April 2011 the PSOW suggested 

that the change should not be brought into force until such time as the PSOW 
had consulted the Adjudication Panel, Monitoring Officers and others.  The 
PSOW telephoned the Acting Monitoring Officer on May 25th to advise that he 
has made contact with various officials who have a role in the process. 

 
 The PSOW is strongly in support of the scheme.  He is trying to clear the path 

for the adoption of the system in Swansea.  His advice is that the proposed 
process should not be implemented until he is able to confirm to the Council, 
following his discussions, that there will be no problems in implementing the 
scheme.  

 
 
 

Page 13



3.  Financial Implications 
 
3.1 The administration of the process will be dealt with through Legal and 

Democratic Services and any costs will be contained within existing budgets. 
 
4. Legal Implications 
 
4.1 There should be no Legal implications in adopting this process. 
 
5. Recommendations 
 
5.1 That Council adopts the mediation process set out on the flowchart in 

Appendix 1 in principle and authorises the Acting Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services and Procurement to make all necessary arrangements 
to deal with the administration of the process, subject to the receipt from the 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales of confirmation that the use of the 
process will not cause any issues for members and subject to consultation 
with the Group Leaders following the receipt of that response. 

 
5.2 That all members agree to attempt to resolve any grievances they may have 

with other Councillors through the internal mediation process whenever 
possible, before referring an issue to the Public Services Ombudsman for 
Wales, once the process has been implemented. 

 
5.3 That a copy of this report is sent to the Standards Committee. 
 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
Welsh Audit Office Report July 2010 
Standards Committee Report and Minutes 
 
Contact Officer:  Roderic Jones – Acting Head of Legal, Democratic Services and 
Procurement & Monitoring Officer 
 
Legal Officer:   Roderic Jones  
 
Date of Report:  1st June 2011 
 

Page 14



 

Page 15



Appendix 2 

 
Mr Peter Tyndall 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae 
Pencoed  
CF35 5LJ 
 

Rod Jones 
 

 
01792 636699 

 
rod.jones@swansea.gov.uk 

 
RJ/GH 

 
 

 12
th
 April 2011 

 
 
Dear Mr Tyndall, 
 
Re: AN APPROACH IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA TO 
STANDARDS ISSUES  
 
The Standards Committee in Swansea has been working during the last year to 
investigate how better working relationships can be fostered among the elected 
Councillors in Swansea.  To that end all Political Group Leaders have been invited to 
attend meetings of the Standards Committee.  You will recall attending one meeting 
of the Committee.  Two major issues have emerged which I deal with under the 
following headings:- 
 
Informal Mediation Process 
 
A process has been developed through meetings involving the political group 
leaders, the Chair and Vice Chair of Standards Committee, the Chief Executive, the 
Monitoring Officer and the Democratic Services and Complaints Manager.  This 
group has agreed an approach to manage complaints which an elected member may 
have against another elected member.  I attach for your information a flow chart 
which sets out the details of the process.  You will note that the approach is to try to 
sort out any issues which may arise through an apology, in the first instance, and 
then through a meeting of the political group leaders. 
 
The intention is to report to the annual meeting of the Council in May to seek the 
agreement of Council to use this method of dispute resolution and for all members to 
agree to use that method.  Some queries emerged from the last meeting of the group 
mentioned above and I was asked to contact you to raise the issues the group would 
like your guidance on.  I hope you will support the general principle of the approach.  
I set out the two issues in numbered paragraphs below:- 
 
 

1) To make this procedure effective Council may be asked in May to add a 
paragraph to the Code of Conduct requiring members to agree to resolve any 
grievances they may have through the informal procedure.  Would the 
Ombudsman’s office be prepared to support the process by requiring 

Page 16



Swansea members to use this process before you accept a complaint from 
any elected member against another elected member? 

 
2) In view of paragraph 6(1)(c) of the Code,  can the informal process be used in 

Swansea where a member is concerned about the perceived failure to declare 
an interest by another member?  The feeling of the political group leaders and 
the Chair of Standards is that it would be useful to use the informal process in 
these cases to identify and resolve issues.  However, elected members have 
a duty under paragraph 6(1)(c) of the Code to report to you if they reasonably 
believe there is a breach of the Code and if a failure to declare an interest is 
identified the scope for informal resolution may be more limited.  The group 
would not wish to place any member in potential breach of 6(1)(c) by requiring 
them to go through the informal procedure, but, to make the procedure as 
effective as possible and to avoid unnecessary investigations for you office, 
the group would wish the procedure to be used.  Would you be able to confirm 
that you will not accept a complaint against a member under paragraph 
6(1)(c) of the Code where they have referred their complaint to the informal 
procedure, even on an allegation relating to the failure to declare an interest? 

 
It appears to the writer that it would be very difficult to bring complaints by 
members of the public against elected members within the scope of the 
informal procedure.  Any guidance you can offer in this respect would be 
welcome. 
 
Legal Representation for Members At Standards Committee or the 
Adjudication Panel for Wales 
 
The other major issue that Standards Committee have requested more 
investigation into involves legal representation for members when answering 
complaints involving alleged Code of Conduct breaches.  The Regulations 
require that a member who is found in breach of the Code and receives a 
sanction must re-pay to the Council (or to any insurer if the Council has 
insurance in place) any sums which the member has received to pay for 
his/her legal costs. 
 
You may recall that, during the investigation into Councillor Mary Jones from 
Swansea, the Council’s in house legal department acted for Councillor Jones 
in the first stages of the matter.  You received legal advice from the Solicitors 
firm which you had instructed to deal with the matter to the effect that it would 
be ultra vires for an in-house Solicitor to act for a member in these 
circumstances. 
 
ACSES have now obtained an opinion from James Goudie QC which covers 
this point.  My understanding is that this opinion has been sent to you by 
ACSES. (Paragraphs 73 to 100 are relevant).  In summary Mr Goudie advises 
that it is not ultra vires to act, though the potential conflict of interest may 
prevent an in house Solicitor acting for Councillors in his own Council in such 
circumstances.  However, the conflict of interest point can be removed if an in 
house Solicitor from a neighbouring authority acts for a member in these 
circumstances. 

Page 17



 
In view of the potentially heavy legal costs for members in Code of Conduct 
matters, the Standards Committee have asked me to pursue with 
neighbouring authorities whether they would be prepared to reach a reciprocal 
agreement with Swansea for in house lawyers to represent members in Code 
of Conduct issues.  Before such an approach is adopted Standards 
Committee would like to establish your approach to this matter.  It is of no 
help to members to have to change their legal representation during the 
process and clearly it is of no help to the process for there to be any disputes 
between the Ombudsman’s office and a Council during a Code of Conduct 
matter about the legal representation for a member.  I appreciate that you 
may wish to consider taking further legal advice before responding on this 
point, but I would ask you to respond as soon as convenient. 
 
The Chair of Standards Committee has asked me to invite you to attend a 
future meeting of the group referred to above – i.e. the political group leaders, 
the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and the Chair of Standards (and 
Vice Chair if he can attend).  No meeting date if fixed at present.  Please can 
you let me know if you are able to attend a meeting of this group and I can 
arrange with your office a convenient time and date. 
 
I look forward to hearing from you on the above.  It would be very helpful if I 
could receive your response by May 6th, as that would enable me to report 
your response to Annual Council. 
 
Please let me know if you require any further details on any of the matters 
referred to. 

 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
ROD JONES - ACTING HEAD OF LEGAL, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  
& PROCUREMENT 

Page 18



 

Page 19



 

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 
Mr Peter Tyndall 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 
1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae 
Pencoed  
CF35 5LJ 
 

Rod Jones 
 

 
01792 636699 

 
rod.jones@swansea.gov.uk 

 
RJ/GH/SC1-01 

 
 

 4
th
 May 2011 

 
 

Dear Mr Tyndall, 
 

Re: AN APPROACH IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SWANSEA TO 
STANDARDS ISSUES  
 

Thank you for your letters dated 20th & 21st April 2011. 
 

With regard to the opinion from James Goudie QC, this opinion was obtained 
by ACSES and has only be given to me in confidence.  ACSES have agreed 
to send a copy to the Ombudsman, but clearly this has not yet happened.  I 
am not in a position to release the opinion as I only have it on a confidential 
basis.  I have e-mailed ACSES and I understand that due to pressure of work 
on the ACSES officers they have not yet sent the opinion to the 
Ombudsman’s office.  Hopefully this will be done in the near future. 
 

Thank you for confirming that you and Mrs Thomas would be happy to come 
to a meeting of the Political Group Leaders, Chief Executive, Monitoring 
Officer and Chair of Standards.  Currently such a meeting has not been 
arranged and it is not likely that one will be arranged before June, but I shall 
contact you to discuss possible dates in the near future. 
 

May I thank you also to your detailed response of my letter of 12th April 2011.  
I should refer to your penultimate paragraph (and also your first paragraph).  
Will you be contacting Monitoring Officers, the Welsh Assembly Government 
and the Adjudication Panel?  If so, do you have a timescale in which to make 
the relevant contacts? 
 

I look forward to hearing from you. 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
RODERIC JONES - ACTING HEAD OF LEGAL, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

& PROCUREMENT 

 

Page 22



Joint Report of the Head of Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer 
 

Standards Committee – 13 February 2015 
 

TREATING PEOPLE WITH RESPECT 
 

Purpose: 
 

To consider how to tackle and co-ordinate the 
issue raised by a number of Political Group 
Leaders in relation to ‘Treating People with 
Respect’. 
 

Policy Framework: 
 

None. 
 

Reason for Decision: 
 

To consider what work needs to be carried out 
with regard to the purpose outlined above. 
 

Consultation: 
 

Finance, Legal. 

Recommendation(s): It is recommended that: 

  

1) The views of the Committee are sought. 

  

Report Author: Huw Evans 

Finance Officer: Carl Billingsley 

Legal Officer: Tracey Meredith 

Access to Services Officer: Euros Owen 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 During the period 18 March and 10 October 2014, the Standards Committee 

held individual discussions with the Chief Executive, Political Group Leaders, 
Chairs of Regulatory Committees and the Chair of the Scrutiny Programme 
Committee. 

 
1.2 A recurring theme emerged from these discussions in relation to ‘Treating 

People with Respect’. 
 
1.3 The Standards Committee on 9 January 2015 created and prioritised a 

workplan for 2015-2016.  Work relating to ‘Treating People with Respect’ was 
one of the prioritised issues. 

 
2. Treating People with Respect 
 
2.1 Prior to commencing any work in this area, the Committee needs to consider 

what the issues are and what needs to be addressed.  As such, it is proposed 
that the Committee conduct a scoping exercise in order to progress the issue. 

 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



3. Equality and Engagement Implications 
 
3.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening process took place prior to 

the consultation period.  The outcome indicated that it was low priority and a 
full report was not required. 

 
4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 This will be met from within existing budget. 
 
5. Legal Implications 
 
5.1 These are set out in the Report. 
 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Appendices: None 
 
  
 

Page 24


	Agendâu
	2 Datgeliadau o fuddiannau personol a rhagfarnol.
	3 Cofnodion.
	5 Uno is-bwyllgorau Safonau Cynghorau Cymuned/Tref â'r Pwyllgor Safonau.
	6 Datrys anghydfodau lleol gan Gynghorwyr
	7 Trin pobl â pharch

